
 
 
 

 
City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Planning & City Development Committee 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Wednesday 26th July, 2023 

   

Time: 
 

 6.30 pm 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18:01 - 03 18th Floor, Westminster City Hall, 64 
Victoria Street, London, SW1E 6QP 

   

Members: 
 

 Councillors: 
 

 

  Ruth Bush (Chair) 
Jason Williams (Vice-Chair) 
Barbara Arzymanow 
Nafsika Butler-Thalassis 
Md Shamsed Chowdhury 
Paul Fisher 
Jim Glen 
 

Ryan Jude 
Amanda Langford 
Ed Pitt Ford 
Sara Hassan 
Robert Rigby 
Cara Sanquest 
Elizabeth Hitchcock 
 

   

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting 
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda 
 
Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the 
ground floor reception at City Hall.  If you have a disability 
and require any special assistance please contact the 
Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of the 
meeting. 
 

   

T  

 An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone 
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  If you require 
any further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Georgina Wills, Committee and Governance Officer. 
 
Email: gwills@westminster.gov.uk; Tel: 07870 548348 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of 
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact 
the Head of Committee and Governance Services in advance of the meeting please. 
 
AGENDA 
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  
 
1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 
 
2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  

 To receive and record declarations of interest. 
 
 

 

 
3.   MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES (Pages 5 - 16) 

 To sign the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record of 
proceedings. 
 
Matters Arising from the Minutes 
 

 

 
4.   ANNUAL UPDATE ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

PERFORMANCE - 2022/23 
(Pages 17 - 24) 

 
5.   UPDATE ON APPEALS PERFORMANCE AND TRENDS 

2022/23 
(Pages 25 - 40) 

 
6.   DESIGN REVIEW PANEL  

 The Planning & City Development Committee to receive a verbal 
update on the Design Review Panel.  
 

 

 
7.   PLANNING & CITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

CONSTITUTION 
 

 The Planning & City Development Committee to receive a verbal 
update. 
 

 

 
8.   SUMMARY OF MEMBER TRAINING DURING 2023 (Pages 41 - 42) 

        Biodiversity Net Gain 
  

       Advertisements 
 

 

 



 
 

 

3

9.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT 

 
 
10.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  

        1 November 2023 
 

 

 
 
Stuart Love 
Chief Executive 
18 July 2023 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 

 

 
CITY OF WESTMINSTER 

 
 

MINUTES 
 
 

Planning & City Development Committee  
 

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Planning & City Development Committee held on 
Thursday 27th April, 2023, Rooms 18.01 & 18.03, 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, 
London. 
 
Members Present: Councillors Ruth Bush (Chair), Jason Williams (Vice-Chair), 
Barbara Arzymanow, Paul Fisher, Jim Glen, Ryan Jude, Ed Pitt Ford, Sara Hassan and 
Robert Rigby 
 
Also Present: Councillor Geoff Barraclough   
 
Apologies for Absence: Councillor Md Shamsed Chowdhury, Councillor Amanda 
Langford, Councillor Cara Sanquest and Councillor Mark Shearer 
 
 

1 MEMBERSHIP 
 
There were no changes to the membership.  
 
2 DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 
 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 
3 MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 
 
3.1      Agreed that the minutes of the Planning & City Development Committee held 
 on 26 October 2022 were a true record, subject to the deletion of sentence in 
 paragraph 3.2.8 in relation to the Paddington Green Police Station beginning 
 ‘This was to guard against’ be deleted. That the sentence be amended read 
 ‘This was to guard against any actions by Members which could potentially be 
 viewed or amount to pre-determination’   
  
3.2       Matters Arising from the Minutes 
  
3.2.1   Minutes 3.2 – Minutes 3.2.4 National Policy & Planning Reform Update, 4.4 
 Affordable Housing and Planning Obligations SPD. 
  
3.2.1i   The Committee requested that they be provided updates of when      
 Supplementary Planning Documents were being formulated or in the process  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 
2 

 

of formally being adopted. Details are provided in the council’s published 
Local Development scheme – a link to this is provided under the planning 
policy update in section 5 below. 

  
3.2.2   Minutes 3.2 – Minutes 4 Planning Application And Appeals Performance 
Mid-   Year Updated 4.3.3  
  
3.2.2(i) The Committee noted that the fees for the Pre-Application Advise Service 
 had been increased and requested that information be provided on what the 
 current rate was, the fee increase and how costings compared to other Local 
 Planning Authorities.  
  
3.2.2(ii) Officers advice that there were differing increases for different fees, and  

these ranged between 10% and   25%.  Residents’ fees have been kept as 
low as possible. The Committee were informed that fees had not been 
increased for several years prior to 2021 when annual review of fees 
recommenced, and this was taken into consideration during the review of 
costs.  

  
3.2.3   Minutes 3.2 – Minutes 5 Amendments to Sub-Committee Late 
 Representations Procedures 5.7.6 
  
3.2.3(i)The Committee requested that the Chair’s Script be updated to ensure that it  
 explains what late submissions are and the rules regarding their submission.  
           Officers were also requested to provide feedback on how other Local 
 Planning Authorities support their members in reading late representations in 
 particular individuals who have reading needs such as dyslexia or English as 
 a second language.  
  
3.2.4    Minutes 3.2 – Minutes 7.1 - Any Other Business Which the Chair Considers 
 Urgent. 
  
3.2.4(i)The Committee agreed to hold future discussions on what protocols should 
 be adopted for colleagues who make representations on Planning Sub-        
 Committee and whether they should leave the room once they have made 
 their deputations.   
  
  
4 WESTMINSTER DESIGN REVIEW PANEL 
 
4.1      The Committee received a report which provided an update on the progress 
 in establishing a Design Review Panel for Westminster. The 
Westminster          Design Review Panel (DRP) is being established to provide an 
expert,        independent voice on design which will support internal decision 
makers to  

promote exemplary, sustainable design standards and negotiate design 
improvements. The establishment of a Design Review Panel was a manifesto 
commitment and responds to both the National Planning Policy Framework 
and London Plan policy, which strongly recommend that local planning 
authorities have design review processes in place. The DRP will be in 
operation from Autumn 2023. 

Page 6



 
3 

 

  
4.2       Members had an in-depth discussion and noted the following: - 
  
4.2.1   That DRP Members would be remunerated, and this practice was consistent 
 with panels that are operated by other Local Planning Authorities. The 
 expenses paid would be a small amount and individuals would only receive 
 payments for DRP that they took part in. 
  
4.2.2   That the selection criteria for recruiting Panel Members were published on the 
 Council’s website and it was preferred for prospective applicants to have a 
 good knowledge of Westminster. The advertisement for Panel Members     
 had generated a good response from a diverse range of individuals and this 
 was the objective of the recruitment process. The DRP membership is 
 expected to be reviewed every two years. 
 
4.2.3  That DRP members’ expertise and knowledge would determine whhich DRP 
 they are selected to take part in, and this would also be dependent on         
 which planning schemes were due to be considered. Officers responsible for  

the planning scheme would also liaise with Chairs and Applicants in what 
expertise was required for proposals and this would be reflected on the 
membership and to ensure that advice provided is able to enhance schemes. 
The best practices of DRPs of other local Planning Authorities and the 
Greater London Authority have been reviewed to ensure that the procedures 
put in place are suitable and effective. 

  
4.2.4   That DRP members would be required to keep abreast of changes in the 
 planning process and design in their areas of expertise. The Committee noted 
 that the planning system was dynamic and constantly evolving and that 
 DRP would need to accommodate new innovations and any changes to the 
 Planning Legislation or National Policy Framework. Members noted that there 
 were differing views in areas such as sustainability and that the expertise of 
 DRP would ensure that right advice is provided in areas that  are constantly 
 developing.   
  
4.2.5   That the DRP would provide technical information only and that Planning     
 Officers would continue to be responsible for drafting recommendations for 
 schemes. The Committee were advised that DRP would have an input into 
 schemes and therefore advice could come under legal review and this would 
 be dependent on the circumstances of each case. Officers advised that most 
 London Local Planning Authorities used DRP, and academic research          
 indicated that they added value to planning regimes and provided in depth 
 expertise on subject matters. The Panel would continue to be monitored to    
 ensure that it continues to meet its objectives and findings would be reported 
 to the Committee.  
  
4.2.6   That costings of administering the DRP had now been formulated and that     
 fees for using the service would meet the cost of the service. Officers      
 advised that the service area would be adequately resourced to ensure that 
 full support is provided to the DRP, and this would continue to be reviewed. 
  

Page 7



 
4 

 

4.2.7   That DRP would operate primarily at the pre-application stage and Design 
 Officers would continue to attend Sub-Committees to provide advice on       
 design and give views on the suggestions of the DRP. The Committee were 
 advised that Design Officers were in support of DRP and a small number are 
 members of these forums in other Local Planning Authorities. Officers advised 
 Members that there were no indications from other DRPs of conflicts arising in 
 relation to the attribution of weight given to the views of the Design Officers 
 and those of the DRP or known Judicial Reviews regarding this matter.   
  
4.2.8   That Planning Sub-Committees would have a record in their reports on 
 whether schemes have been considered by a DRP. This may be in a format 
 such as a summary in the report of the DRPs recommendations. The 
 Committee was advised that DRP Chairs may also attend and address Sub-
 Committees and the format in which views of DRP are provided would be 
 tailored to the Committee requirements.  
  
4.2.9   Members were advised that the Design Review Panel was the ‘brand name’ 
 of the scheme and term was widely used and understood. The Committee 
 agreed that future discussion could be held about what titles should be given 
 to the Panel and the pool of members that make up its membership. 
  
RESOLVED  
   

1.     That the selection criteria for Design Review Panel member be circulated to 
the Committee.  

  
2.     That the Committee receive a verbal update about the Design Review Panel 

at their next meeting 
  

3.     That the report be noted, 
  
   
5 PLANNING POLICY UPDATE 
 
5.1      The Committee received a report which provided an update on the Partial      
 Review of the City Plan and an overview of the council’s response to the 
 government’s recent consultation on changes to the NPPF.  
  
5.2    Members held a discussion and noted the following: - 
  
5.2.1   That research undertaken by Wessex Economics previously recommended  

that 56% of affordable housing should be designated intermediate housing 
and 44% as social housing. The Committee noted the important roles which 
key workers held and that the positions they held encompassed a wide range 
of roles and acknowledged that this cohort would also be eligible for social 
housing. The Partial Review of the City Plan would result in the ratio of 
intermediate housing and social housing being revisited with the intention to 
prioritise social housing as had been the case before the adoption of the 
current City Plan. This would ensure that there is more housing stock which is 
genuinely affordable and have longer secured tenancies. The Partial Review 

Page 8



 
5 

 

of affordable housing will undergo consultation and would be supported by a 
viability study. 

  
5.2.2   That the social housing waiting list was lengthy and that a large proportion of 
 Westminster residents would not be eligible for these tenancies. Members 
 noted that if the current tenure split is reversed the proposals for affordable 
 housing would ensure that 6 out of 10 affordable homes would be designated 
 for social rents and that 4 out of 10 would be for immediate rent and be at the 
 lower end of the rent spectrum. It was not intended that Shared Ownership 
 would form part of the intermediate provision. 
  
5.2.3  That changes in ratio for affordable housing would not result in more dense 
 developments and that policies such as retrofit  would guard against this. 
 'The Paddington Green Police Station development had 50% affordable 
 housing as it was situated on land owned by MOPAC 10% of this affordable 
 housing provision would be offsite and outside Westminster on land similarly 
 owned 
  
5.2.4 In terms of proposed reforms to the NPPF being proposed by government, 
 Members noted that the Government's proposed reforms to the NPPF 
 included proposals to increase fees in relation to retrospective planning 
 applications. To penalties, It was already possible to levy certain penalties, 
 including those there were instruments in the planning regime which enabled 
 penalties to be levied at applicants. These included developers and 
 Individuals being required to pay penalties following investigations by the 
 Enforcement Team. Where unapproved operations of buildings had resulted 
 in profits, these operations were commonly penalised under the proceeds of 
 crime legislation. 
  
5.3 Members welcomed that the council intends to continue working on  

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) and noted that the Local 
Development Scheme was available on the Council’s webpage which detailed 
the timetabling of policy productions, and these including indicative timetables 
of SPDs formulations. The Committee were informed that publications of 
these information was a statutory requirement.  

  
RESOLVED  
  

1.  That the webpage link for the Local Development Scheme be circulated to the 
Committee within the meeting minutes – see 
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/media/document/westminster-local-
development-scheme-. 

 
2.     That the contents of the report be noted 

 
6 ADDENDUM REPORT ON AMENDMENTS TO SUB-COMMITTEE LATE 

REPRESENTATIONS PROCEDURES 
 
6.1      The Committee received an addendum report which provided additional        
 information on previous trends in late representations reported to the            
 Planning Applications Sub-Committees between January 2022 and March  

Page 9

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/media/document/westminster-local-development-scheme-
https://www.westminster.gov.uk/media/document/westminster-local-development-scheme-


 
6 

 

2023. The committee was requested to consider whether the planning 
service should amend current procedures for accepting late representations in 
advance of Sub-Committee meetings by introducing a deadline for their 
submission in advance of the start of the meeting. The deadline options for 
consideration were: 
 

• Option 1 – Deadline at 12.00 on the day of the committee meeting. 
 

• Option 2 – Deadline at 12.00 on the working day prior to the committee 
meeting. 

 
• Option 3 – Deadline at 12.00 two working days prior to the committee 

meeting (to align with current public speaking deadline). 
 
6.2       Members held a discussion and noted the following: - 
  
6.2.1   That between January 2022 and March 2023 there were 28 Planning 
 Applications Sub-Committees’ and late representations were tabled at all but 
 from one. There were 296 representations at an average of 10.5 
 representations per committee. The average length of representation is  2.7 
 A4 pages. 
  
6.2.2   That Chairs would be required to take a flexible approach to accepting late 
 representations during the first 3 months following introduction of a deadline. 
 This flexibility includes instances where information submitted did not include 
 new material considerations.  
  
6.2.3   That during Bank Holiday periods the submission deadlines for late 
 representations would be moved forward a day and which was the same as 
 put in place for the public speaker’s online registration form.  
  
6.3 The Committee agreed the following:-  
 
6.3.1 Chairs should be given discretions on whether representations received after 
 the deadlines should be considered and be able to determine whether 
 submissions do amount to a ‘new material consideration’. This should be 
 done in consultation with both the presiding officer and legal officer. 
 Members noted that there could be differing views amongst officers and 
 Chairs on what constitutes new material considerations and agreed that the 
 Chair should have the ultimate decision on whether these representations 
 should be accepted. The Committee noted that Chairs already had discretions 
 on whether late speakers can make deputations at their Sub- Committees.  
  
6.3.2   That, while there should be some flexibility in accepting the Reds and to note 
 there should be a strong presumption that unless they included new material 
 considerations, they would be rejected. 
  
6.3.3  That officers should continue to be permitted to table amending memoranda at 
 the Sub-Committee, but that they should be encouraged to adhere to the new 
 deadline where possible.   
  

Page 10



 
7 

 

6.3.4   Chair’s script be updated to include information about late             
 representations are, those which had been received by the Sub-Committee 
 and their contents. The Committee noted that late submissions often 
 contained duplications of information previously circulated to the 
 Sub- Committee.   
  
6.4   After further discussion, Members discussed the various options presented by 
 officers in relation to  accepting late representations and unanimously agreed 
 that Option 2 was preferred. That the deadline for submitting  late 
 representations will now be set at 12.00noon on the working day prior to the 
 committee meeting. 
  
6.5    The Committee thanked Officers for their report.  
  
RESOLVED  
  

1.     That the deadline for late representations should be set at 12.00 on the 
working day prior to the committee meeting and during Bank Holiday periods 
the submissions deadline be moved forward a day. 

  
2.     That Members receive late representations by email by close of business on 

the day prior to the Committee meeting. 
  

3.     That the introduction of a deadline for late submissions be implemented in 
late summer/autumn 2023 and be fully publicised on the Council’s website. 
and It must also be publicised amongst interested parties such as amenity 
societies, neighbourhood forums and ward Councillors. 

  
  
7 EARLY COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT GUIDANCE UPDATE 
 
7.1      The Committee received a report which provided an update on the Early        
 Engagement Community Guidance. The council launched its Early 
 Community Engagement Guidance in February 2022, in response to’ address 
 the concerns expressed by local communities. The guidance sets 
 expectations for engagement carried out by applicants and developers and 
 provides a framework to support them so that their pre-application 
 engagement with communities occurs at an earlier stage, is more transparent, 
 inclusive, and accessible, and is more responsive to the expectations of local 
 communities. 
  
7.2    During the discussion, the following points were made: - 
  
7.2.1   That the online profile of the Early Community Engagement Guidance was 
to    be reviewed. Members requested that they be provided an update once this 
 has been completed and agreed that the website should be easy to 
 navigate and search functions be simple to operate. 
  
7.2.2  That early community engagement is not compulsory and urged that the  

benefits of pre-application engagement with communities should be 
promoted. It led to better designed development and was normally cost 

Page 11



 
8 

 

effective. The Committee agreed that well, designed schemes fared better in 
the planning process and that these successes should encourage applicants 
and developers to use similar pathways. Members noted that there were 
current views that developers should be ‘co creating’ and ‘co designing’ with 
residents and users. 

  
7.2.3   Members agreed that consultations with community groups must include a      
 wide range of its members, and this to ensure that a diverse response is 

received. The consultations should aim to include all the community groups in 
the city. Members noted that a template for the Early Engagement Community 
Strategy would be beneficial and that it’s use, and effectiveness be reviewed 
at a later stage.  

  
7.2.4   That the benefits of the Early Community Engagement Guidance should  

be fully promoted and that it should be explicitly communicated that 
developers and applicants should consult with a diverse and wide range of 
groups in addition to the well-known forums such as the Amenity Societies 
and Neighbourhood Forums. The Committee agreed that there should be 
various options provided on how interested parties can conduct their public 
consultations and that a disclaimer should also be included which informs that 
models recommended were for guidance only. Members agreed that public 
consultations were the responsibility of applicants and developers.  

  
7.2.5   Members were advised that that development and enhancement of the Early  

Community Engagement Guidance were part of established work streams 
and within the remit of existing officers. The Committee noted that the one-
year review of the guidance was part of the ‘services’ work programme. 
Officers advised that actioning the recommendations arising from the review 
was not an onerous task, and the costs were spread across various other 
projects. The recommendations following review have also fed into other 
annual reforms and including the introduction of a pre-application service for 
developer engagement plans. Members were advised that case officers would 
become more involved in the earlier stages of the pre-application process.  

 
7.2.6   The Committee agreed that cost implications of developing and reviewing  the 
 Early Community Engagement Guidance should be monitored. 
  
RESOLVED  
  

1.     The Committee agreed the following recommendations: - 
  

(a) Work with the Communities Team to obtain feedback from community 
groups on their experience of developer engagement over the last 12 months 
to identify whether there have been any changes or improvements in 
developer engagement activity that have not been reported to officers at pre-
application stage. 
  
(b) Introduce a new pre-application advice service to provide applicants and  
developers with guidance on their Early Community Engagement Strategy 
and identify a designated point of contact within the service to encourage 
developers to engage with the Council to develop their Early Community 

Page 12



 
9 

 

Engagement Strategies ahead of paid pre-application advice with officers on 
the planning merits of their scheme.  
  
(c) Require pre-applicants for major development to provide details of their 
preapplication community engagement as a mandatory part of the pre-
application request submission form. 
  
(d) Amend the guidance to make the expected requirements at pre-application 
stage clearer, including provision of a template Early Community Engagement 
Strategy. 
  
(e) Review website to improve the online profile of Early Community 
Engagement guidance. 
  
(f) Write to the WPA, planning agents and other relevant bodies and 
organisations to relaunch the updated guidance and related practices and  
  
(g) Continue to work with applicants and developers to develop a set of 
enhanced case studies for future inclusion in the guidance, so that practical 
application of the principle of the guidance is more clearly articulated. 

  
2.     That the Committee be provided feedback following the review of the online 

profile of the Early Community Engagement Guidance and that the website be 
easy to navigate and search functions be simple to operate. 

  
3.     That the template for the Early Engagement Strategy be reviewed at a later 

stage and this should include its usage and effectiveness.  
  

4.     That the benefits of the Early Community Engagement Guidance continue to 
be fully promoted and it be communicated that it leads to better designed 
development schemes, is cost effective and enables developers to consult 
with a diverse and wide range of groups in addition to amenity societies and 
neighbourhood forums. 

  
5.     That various options be provided on how interested parties can conduct public 

consultations and that a disclaimer be included which informs that models 
recommended are for guidance only.  

  
6.     That interested parties be encouraged to ensure consultations with 

community groups include a wide range of its members in order to obtain a 
diverse view.  

  
7.     That the cost of developing and reviewing the Early Community Engagement 

Guidance Scheme be monitored.             
 
8 NATIONAL PLANNING CONSULTATIONS UPDATE 
 
8         The Committee received a report which provided an update on recent and     
 ongoing consultations by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and   
 Communities (DLUHC) on changes to planning fees and performance             
 monitoring, permitted development rights, future changes to the current CIL 

Page 13



 
10 

 

 and S106 regimes and the replacement of Environmental Impact             
 Assessments with Environmental Outcome Reports. 
  
8.1      During discussion, the following points were made: -  
  
8.1.1   Members welcomed the prospective increase in the fees for late applications 
 and noted that this would act as a deterrent. They supported the incentives in 
 place for retrofit developments. Members were reminded that applications 
 fees were set nationally and that the Councils’ discretionary fees were 
 consistent with other comparable London Local Planning Authorities. The 
 Committee agreed that fees should be linked to inflation.  
  
8.1.2   The Committee noted that the Council’s consultation response had suggested  

additional fees be included for listed building consent and commented that 
this could discourage applicants from making suitable alterations to premises. 
Members noted that this area was currently non-funded and commented that 
Central Government should absorb the cost of these applications as the 
preservation of these historic buildings contributed to the country’s heritage.  

  
8.1.3  Officers advised that Extension df Times (EOTs) were good tools which 
 provided opportunities for the prescribed timetabling periods for planning    
 decision to be extended where necessary. The Committee noted that these   
 increases in times allowed for revisions in applications to be made instead of 
 they being refused and this was beneficial and welcomed by applicants.      
 Officers advised that the set planning decision timetable could be unrealistic 
 and result in permissions being refused. The Committee noted that delayed    
 planning decisions had a financial implication for smaller developments and  

that the Service was in communication with the development industry about 
the implications of time delays. These included detailing how additional 
planning conditions could have an impact on the commercial development. 
Officers commented that the planning regime had become more complex and 
volume of the documentation had increased, making assessment of many 
applications within the statutory timeframes more challenging. 

  
8.1.4   Members noted that it was preferred for there to be some control over the      
 usage of permitted development rights in conservation areas such as the       
 installation of solar equipment on the front façade of buildings. Officers           
 advised that these installations did not outweigh the harm which they would 
 have on these locations. Members commented that the streetscape of the 
 conservation areas would be adversely affected by their presence and this 
 view was likely to be shared by residents. The Committee advised that 
 changes to financial incentives for these schemes were now limited and 
 requested that future feedback be provided on their take up. Members were 
 informed that central government was seeking to increase the amount of solar 
 roof equipment.  
  
8.1.5  Members noted the importance of climate emergency and commented that  

temporary permission for solar roof equipment’s should be considered as 
these would contribute to reaching environmental goals. The Committee 
noted that solar panels should be the last course of action when remediating 
buildings and focus should be on conserving energy rather than generating 

Page 14



 
11 

 

and this included building insulation. Members commented that the use of 
solar panels should also not be deterred.  

  
8.1.6   That Neighbourhood Forums would continue to be consulted around the use 
 of the community infrastructure levy. 
  
8.1.7   That the ‘right to acquire’ would continue to operate in accordance with 
the       Local Planning Authority Development Plan and this would guide the 
amount  of affordable housing stock that was required. 
  
8.1.8   Officers informed that there were limited controls on when CIL payments are 
 received and under the Central Governments Infrastructure Levy proposals 
 these sums may be received later then currently prescribed.  
  
8.1.9   Members commented that there was widespread misuse of short term letting  
 of residential properties in the city and that this was detrimental to residents 
 and the neighbourhoods. They agreed that restrictions in this usage 
 should be fully supported. Officers advised that there were current 
 consultations being undertaken with Licensing Services, resident and 
 community groups regarding short term lets.   
  
RESOLVED  
  
Members noted the contents of the report, including the possible implications which 
they may have for planning decision making in Westminster. 

 
9 ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT 
 
9.1      The Chair informed that the Planning & City Development Committee 
 was currently being reviewed and requested that Members provide their views 
 on what they considered the role of the Committee to be.  
  
9.2      The Chair thanked Officers for their input with arranging and delivering ‘Meet 
 the Planners Event’ and thanked colleagues for attending. The Committee 
 noted that the event was viewed as being helpful and informed that similar 
 activities could be arranged in the future if requested. 
  
9.3     The Committee were informed that the next training session would focus on 
 Biodiversity and these requirements were soon to become statutory. 
  
9.4      Members were reminded that a briefing session by the Westminster Property 
 Association had been requested and were asked to provide availability 
 regarding suggested dates.  
 
10 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
Wednesday 26 July 2023 
 
 
The Meeting ended at 9.15 pm 

Page 15



 
12 

 

 
 
CHAIRMAN:   DATE  

 
 
 

Page 16



  
 

 
Planning & City Development Committee 

Date: 26 July 2023 
  
Classification: General Release 
  
Title: Annual Update on Planning Applications Performance – 2022/23 
  
Report of: Director of Town Planning and Building Control 
  
Financial Summary: None. 
  
Report Author and Contact Details: Oliver Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk/ 
07971026919) 
 
 
1.  Executive Summary  
  
1.1 This report presents an annual update on the performance of the Town Planning 

service in terms of the timeliness and quality of its planning application decision making. 
The success rate of planning appeals is considered in the other report on this agenda.  
 

1.2 The performance of the department over the period between April 2022 and March 
2023 continues to exceed the required performance thresholds set by the Department 
for Levelling Up, Homes and Communities (DLUHC).  

 
2.  Recommendation  
  
2.1 Members are asked to consider the contents of this report and to note the ongoing 

overall good performance of the Town Planning service in terms of its determination of 
planning applications in a timely manner and the quality of decision making. 

  
3.        Background  
  

DLUHC Planning Application Speed and Quality Performance Thresholds 
 

3.1  The performance of local planning authorities (LPAs) in determining planning 
applications for major and non-major development is assessed by the DLUHC over a 
24-month rolling period after every quarter. DLUHC does not monitor the performance 
of local planning authorities in determining ‘other’ applications. ‘other’ applications 
comprise all applications that are not for planning permission, such as applications for 
approval of details pursuant to a planning condition, listed building consent, 
advertisement consent, prior approval, certificates of lawfulness etc. Whilst ‘Other’ 
applications are not monitored by DLUHC, their assessment and timely determination 
makes up a significant proportion of the annual workload of the service and contributes 
to the overall customer perception of the service (see figures in Section 4). 

 
3.2 The assessment of performance for major and non-major applications is judged by the 

DLUHC against two separate measures of performance, as set out in ‘Improving 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



 

Planning Performance – Criteria for Designation’, which was last updated in October 
2022. The measures of performance are:  

 
• the speed with which applications are dealt with measured by the proportion of 

applications that are dealt with within the statutory time or an agreed extended 
period; and,  

• the quality of decisions made by local planning authorities measured by the 
proportion of decisions on applications that are subsequently overturned at appeal.   

 
3.3 For major applications the DLUHC sets a threshold of at least 60% of all decisions 

being made within 13 weeks or within an alternative timeframe agreed with the 
applicant. For non-major development the DLUHC threshold is 70%. 

 
3.4 The DLUHC measures the quality of LPA decision making by monitoring their success 

rate at appeal. For both major and non-major development, the DLUHC sets a 
threshold of not more than 10% of the total number of decisions made by  
an LPA being subsequently overturned at appeal. 

 
3.5 Where an LPA does not meet or exceed these thresholds, it can be ‘designated’ by the 

DLUHC on behalf of the Secretary of State. Where an LPA is designated, it must 
produce an improvement plan for areas of weakness and applicants may apply directly 
to the Planning Inspectorate for determination of the category(ies) of applications for 
which the authority has been designated. 
 

4.  Planning Application Volumes 
 
4.1 The council’s planning service is one of the busiest in the country in terms of the total 

volume of applications it handles annually. Tables 1-3 set out the number of 
applications received, the number withdrawn, and the number of applications 
determined during 2022/23 in context with comparative volumes for preceding years. 
 
Table 1 – Volume of applications received. 
 

Year Major 
Applications 

Non-Major 
Applications 

Other 
Applications 

Total 
Validated 

2022/23 29 2982 4970 7981 
2021/22 34 3099 4923 8056 
2020/21 38 2917 4468 7423 
2019/20 61 3639 5568 9268 

 
Table 2 – Volume of applications withdrawn or otherwise closed prior to determination. 
 

Year Major 
Applications 
Withdrawn 

Non-Major 
Applications 
Withdrawn 

Other 
Applications 
Withdrawn 

Total 
Withdrawn 

2022/23 5 414 498 917 
2021/22 5 354 385 744 
2020/21 2 363 364 729 
2019/20 6 493 516 1015 

 
Table 3 – Volume of applications determined. 
 

Page 18



 

Year Major 
Applications 

Non-Major 
Applications 

Other 
Applications 

Total 
Determined 

2022/23 28 2476 4380 6884 
2021/22 26 2550 4413 6989 
2020/21 35 2534 4036 6605 
2019/20 49 3168 5075 8292 

 
4.2 In addition to handling planning and other related applications, the planning service 

provides a comprehensive pre-application advice service for residents, businesses, 
and developers. Since April 2022, this service has included a discounted fee for advice 
to householders on energy efficiency and sustainability improvements. Table 4 shows 
the total volume of valid pre-application advice requests that were received during 
2022/23 in context with volumes in previous years. 

 
Table 4 – Volume of pre-application advice requests handled. 
 

Year Pre-Application 
Requests 

2022/23 771 
2021/22 714 
2020/21 733 
2019/20 1002 

 
5. Planning Applications Speed and Quality of Decision Making 
  

Speed of Application Decision Making 
 
5.1  For the one-year period from April 2022 to March 2023 the City Council met and 

exceeded the DLUHC performance thresholds for both major and non-major 
applications. The major applications threshold was exceeded by 25.7%, whilst the non-
major applications threshold was exceeded by 6.7%. Performance for 2022/23 is 
shown with comparative data for the preceding years in Tables 5 and 6. 

 
Table 5 – Performance against DLUHC thresholds for major planning applications. 

  
Year Total Decisions Total under 13 

weeks/ PPA's or 
EoT's within 
target 

% < 13 weeks or 
within PPA/EoT 
Target 

2022/23 28 24 85.7% 
2021/22 26 23 88.5% 
2020/21 35 26 77% 
2019/20 49 36 74% 

 
Table 6 – Performance against DLUHC thresholds for non-major planning applications. 

 
Year Total Decisions Total under 13 

weeks/ PPA's or 
EoT's within 
target 

% < 8 weeks or 
within PPA/EoT 
Target 

2022/23 2476 1894 76.7% 

Page 19



 

2021/22 2550 1982 77.7% 
2020/21 2534 1771 70% 
2019/20 3168 2317 73% 

 
5.2 The latest data published by the DLUHC for the rolling 24-month period up to the end 

of March 2023 (see Tables 7 and 8) shows Westminster’s performance for major 
applications to be 86.8% (up from 78% for the 24 months to December 2021), whilst 
performance for non-major applications is 77.2% (up from 72.9% for the 24 months to 
December 2021). The latest performance statistics demonstrate that the planning 
service continues to handle a high volume of applications, whilst also providing timely 
decision making for the significant majority of applications. 

 
5.3 The timeliness of decision making has continued to improve during 2022/23 through 

the continuation of measures implemented in 2021/22 to place greater focus on the 
speed of decision making. The improvements to the speed of decision making have 
been delivered without an adverse impact on the quality of decision making or customer 
service, as identified by the data in Tables 9 and 10.  

 
Table 7 – Comparison of speed of major application decision making with other Inner 
London Local Planning Authorities for 24-month period to end of March 2023. 
 

Local Authority Total 
Major 
Apps 

Decisions 
in agreed 
time limit 
(13 Weeks, 
PPA, EoT or 
EIA) 

% of Apps 
that had a 
PPA, EoT or 
EIA  

% Within 13 
Weeks or 
Agreed Time 
Limit 

% change on 
previous 
performance 
for 24 
months to 
March 2021 

Camden 66 63 92.4% 95.5% +1.4 
City of London 41 39 95.1% 95.1% +4.9 
Greenwich 64 64 95.3% 100% 0.0 
Hackney 28 25 85.7% 89.3% -3.5 
Hammersmith 
and Fulham 

35 35 94.3% 100% +2.5 

Islington 42 41 95.2% 97.6% -0.3 
Kensington and 
Chelsea 

32 32 84.4% 100% 0.0 

Lambeth 76 74 78.9% 97.4% -0.3 
Lewisham 44 43 86.4% 97.7% -2.3 
Southwark 106 76 75.5% 71.7% -5.0 
Tower Hamlets 75 69 89.3% 92.0% +3.5 
Wandsworth 86 77 75.6% 89.5% -4.0 
Westminster 53 46 81.1% 86.8% +9.8 
Inner London 
Average 

748 684 85.3% 82.2% -8.8 

 
Table 8 – Comparison of speed of non-major planning application decision making with 
other Inner London Local Planning Authorities for 24-month period to end of March 
2023. 
 

Local Authority Total 
Non-
Major 
Apps 

Decisions 
in agreed 
time limit (8 
Weeks, 
PPA, EoT or 
EIA) 

% of Apps 
that had a 
PPA, EoT or 
EIA  

% Within 8 
Weeks or 
Agreed Time 
Limit 

% change 
on previous 
performance 
for 24 
months to 
March 2021 

Camden 2,671 2,141 71.9% 80.2% -2.5 
City of London 380 320 75.5% 84.2% -3.3 

Page 20



 

Greenwich 2,831 2,692 31.4% 95.1 -0.6 
Hackney 2,543 2,085 26.1% 82.0% -2.5 
Hammersmith 
and Fulham 

2,901 2,681 51.9% 92.4% 0.0 

Islington 2,487 2,424 39.9% 97.5% +2.8 
Kensington and 
Chelsea 

3,377 2,874 34.1% 85.1% +15.2 

Lambeth 3,338 3,076 42.9% 92.2% -3.5 
Lewisham 3,539 3,268 32.1% 92.3% -1.9 
Southwark 2,648 2,125 22.3% 80.2% -5.4 
Tower Hamlets 1,547 1,400 32.6% 90.5% +1.8 
Wandsworth 4,631 3,841 33.3% 82.9% -1.6 
Westminster 5,025 3,881 28.3% 77.2% +4.3 
Inner London 
Average 

37,918 32,808 37.0% 86.5% +0.8 

 
5.4 Whilst the performance level of other Inner London Boroughs in the determination of 

non-major applications appears higher than Westminster, this is largely reliant on other 
LPAs more extensively utilising Extensions of Time (EoTs) and Planning Performance 
Agreements (PPAs) to extend the time for determination of planning applications 
beyond the statutory 8-week timeframe. The planning service avoids this approach and 
instead focuses on determining a higher proportion of applications within the statutory 
8-week timeframe. Those other Inner London LPAs that more prevalently utilise EoTs 
and PPAs to extend timeframes are able to achieve higher proportions of decisions 
within the flexible DLUHC timeframes, however, this does not necessarily mean that in 
practice their decision making is faster than that delivered by Westminster.  

 
5.5 The median time taken to determine non-major planning applications during 2022/23 

was 7.3 weeks and this is consistent with the speed of decision making since 2017/18, 
which has remained consistently between 7.1 and 7.3 weeks.  

 
 Quality of Application Decision Making 
 
5.6 The DLUHC data for appeals against decisions on major applications demonstrates 

that in the 24-month period to the end of March 2022 (latest period published by the 
DLUHC) the council handled 62 major applications. Of these 62 decisions five were the 
subject of subsequent appeals and of these 3 were allowed. The allowed appeals were 
at Townsend House (20/02361/FULL – appeal allowed on 13 May 2021), 52-73 Wilton 
Road (19/06682/FULL – appeal allowed on 29 December 2021) and Kilmuir House 
(20/01346/FULL – appeal allowed on 3 February 2023). Whilst the decision to refuse 
permission for redevelopment of Townsend House was a delegated decision, the other 
two redevelopment schemes were refused at committee against the officer 
recommendation to grant conditional permission. Consequently, the percentage of all 
major applications permitted via appeal has risen to 4.8% for the relevant 24-month 
period. However, this remains well below the DLUHC performance threshold of 10%.   

 
5.7 In the same 24-month period to the end of March 2023, the council determined 5,097 

non-major applications of which 115 were subsequently the subject of an appeal, Of 
those appeals, 35 were allowed. For non-majors, as a percentage of the total number 
of applications handled in this period, this equates to 0.7% (an improvement of 0.2% 
on the previously reported 24-month period to the end of September 2020). 

 
5.8 Tables 9 & 10 below benchmark Westminster’s quality of decision-making performance 

against other Inner London boroughs. Appeals data for major applications (Table 9) is 
more susceptible to fluctuations between reporting periods due to the more limited 
number of applications that are assessed and determined by each LPA. Consequently, 
whilst the current percentage of all major application decisions allowed at appeal is 

Page 21



 

currently high, it is expected that this will return to a lower level in future reporting 
periods (note that in the previous 24-month reporting period the percentage was 0%).  

 
Table 9 – Comparison of quality of major planning application decisions with other 
Inner London LPAs for the 24-month period to the end of March 2022 (latest period 
published by DLUHC) 

 
Local Authority Total 

Major 
Decisi
ons 

Total 
Appeal 
Decision
s 

No. of 
appeals 
made per 
100 apps 

Total 
Decision
s Over-
turned 

Quality 
of 
Decision
s (% 
over-
turned at 
appeal) 

% change 
on 
previous 
24-month 
period to 
Sept 2020 

Camden 67 1 1.5 0 0.0 0.0 
City of London 43 1 2.4 0 0.0 0.0 
Greenwich 60 6 10.2 3 5.0 +2.4 
Hackney 47 2 4.3 0 0.0 0.0 
Hammersmith 
and Fulham 

40 4 10.3 1 2.5 -1.9 

Islington 47 5 10.6 3 6.4 +2.7 
Kensington and 
Chelsea 

45 1 2.2 0 0.0 -1.7 

Lambeth 84 1 1.2 0 0.0 -4.9 
Lewisham 45 3 6.7 1 2.2 +0.2 
Southwark 133 2 1.5 1 0.8 -1.1 
Tower Hamlets 78 2 2.6 1 1.3 -0.9 
Wandsworth 96 1 1.0 1 1.0 -2.3 
Westminster 62 5 8.2 3 4.8 +4.8 
Inner London 
Average 

847 34 4.0 14 1.7 Data not 
available 

 
Table 10 – Comparison of quality of non-major planning application decisions with 
other Inner London LPAs for 24-month period to the end of March 2022 (latest period 
published by DLUHC). 

 
Local Authority Total 

Non-
Major 
Decisi
ons 

Total 
Appeal 
Decision
s 

No. of 
appeal 
decision
s per 100 
apps 

Total 
Decision
s Over-
turned 

Quality 
of 
Decision
s (% 
over-
turned at 
appeal) 

% change 
on 
previous 
24-month 
period to 
Sept 2020 

Camden 2,570 105 4.1 31 1.2% -0.1 
City of London 370 0 0.0 0 0.0% -0.2 
Greenwich 2,635 154 5.9 68 2.6% -0.6 
Hackney 2,264 121 5.4 47 2.1% +0.5 
Hammersmith 
and Fulham 

2,863 130 4.6 56 2.0% 0.1 

Islington 2,318 143 6.2 32 1.4% -0.1 
Kensington and 
Chelsea 

3,169 119 3.8 43 1.4% +0.2 

Lambeth 3,302 120 3.6 31 0.9% -0.2 
Lewisham 3,224 141 4.4 27 0.8% -0.5 
Southwark 2,784 75 2.7 21 0.8% +0.2 
Tower Hamlets 1,630 87 5.4 15 0.9% +0.1 
Wandsworth 4,641 93 2.0 25 0.5% -0.1 
Westminster 5,097 115 2.3 35 0.7% -0.2 

Page 22



 

Inner London 
Average 

34,297 1,298 3.8 400 1.2% Data not 
available 

 
5.9 In terms of quality of decision making for non-major applications, Table 10 shows that 

Westminster has one of the lowest allowed appeals percentage across all of the Inner 
London LPAs. Only the City of London (which handles far fewer applications and had 
no appeals) and Wandsworth have comparable levels of performance in terms of 
quality of decision making. Similarly, only Wandsworth had a comparably low number 
of appeals submitted per 100 decisions in the 24-months to March 2022. These metrics 
indicate that the Council’s assessment of applications continues to be well balanced 
and that decisions are robustly justified in delegated and committee reports, thereby 
dissuading unsuccessful applicants from appealing and ensuring a high proportion of 
decisions challenged at appeal can be successfully defended. 

 
6.  Financial Implications  
  
6.1  None.  
  
7.  Legal Implications  
  
7.1  None. 
  
8.  Conclusion  
  
8.1     Having regard to the significant volume of applications that are received annually by 

the council and the increasing complexity of many planning submissions, the Town 
Planning service continues to provide a good service in terms of both the speed and 
quality of planning outcomes it delivers to applicants, communities, and other 
stakeholders, as demonstrated by the DLUHC and other performance data set out in 
this report. 

 
 

 
If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of the 
background papers, please contact: Oliver Gibson 
(ogibson@westminster.gov.uk / 07971026919)  
 

 

Appendices: 

None. 

Background Papers: 

None. 

 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 
Planning & City Development Committee 

Date: 26 July 2023 
  
Classification: General Release 
  
Title: Update on Appeals Performance and Trends 2022/23 
  
Report of: Director of Town Planning and Building Control 
  
Financial Summary: None. 
  
Report Author and Contact Details: Jane Hamilton 
(jhamilton@westminster.gov.uk)/Oliver Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk) 
 
1.  Executive Summary  
  
1.1 This report provides an overview of appeals process and update on planning appeals 

received during the last financial year, including an overview of success rate of planning 
appeals and analysis of any notable and allowed appeals and trends. 

 
2.  Recommendation  
  
2.1 Members are asked to consider the contents of this report and to note the overall good 

performance of the Town Planning service in defending decisions to refuse permission 
at appeal. 

  
3.        Background  
  
3.1 Following refusal of any planning decision (including listed building and advertisement 

consents), applicants have the right of appeal to the Secretary of State. This includes 
appeals made against the non-determination of an application that has passed the 
statutory time for determination or against the serving of a formal Notice including 
Planning or Listed Building Enforcement Notices, or a Discontinuance Notice. There is 
no right of appeal for objectors or other third parties, only the applicant.  
  

3.2 An independent Planning Inspector is appointed by the Secretary of State to determine 
appeals. Where an appeal is dismissed, permission can be withheld for all, some, or 
different reasons to the original reasons for refusal cited by the council. If an appeal is 
allowed, planning permission or a related consent is granted, subject to conditions 
determined by the Planning Inspector. There are several grounds of appeal against 
enforcement notices, including where an appellant argues that permission/consent 
should be granted for the unauthorised works that are required to be removed or 
otherwise remedied by the notice – this is in effect the same as an appeal against a 
refusal of planning permission or listed building consent, and the policies used to justify 
the service of the notice are tested.  
  

Page 25

Agenda Item 5

mailto:jhamilton@westminster.gov.uk


 

3.3 There are three types of appeal procedure: written representations, informal hearings, 
and public inquiries. Written representations are the most common, usually used for 
cases where the planning issues are straightforward and there is limited public interest. 
Informal hearings consist of a structured discussion, led by the Inspector. Public 
Inquiries are the most formal, with the parties having legal representation and cross 
examination of the planning and other expert witnesses.  
  

3.4 Appeal decisions are important in monitoring quality of decision-making and testing 
effectiveness of policy. The Secretary of State uses the percentage of decisions 
overturned on appeal as an indicator of the quality of decisions made by planning 
authorities. 
  

3.5 When an application is refused, reasons for refusal need to be clear, evidence based 
and linked to development plan policies, otherwise there is a risk that the decision could 
be overturned on appeal. The same is true for the various forms of enforcement notices. 
If the council is deemed to have acted unreasonably, there is a risk of an award of costs 
against the council irrespective of the appeal decision itself. A costs award can be the 
full or partial costs incurred by the appellant in making the appeal, and depend on the 
nature of the ‘unreasonable behaviour’ and extent to which this resulted in the appellant 
incurring unnecessary costs1. Where an appellant has acted unreasonably during the 
appeal process the council can also seek a full or partial award of costs.  
  

3.6 Appeal decisions are also an important part of the planning history of a site and a 
material planning consideration when determining any subsequent applications. An 
appeal decision can indicate how a development could be amended to make it 
acceptable. Appeal decisions can also be helpful in testing wording of current policies 
and indicating where future changes could be made. Understanding where Inspectors 
place weight on different policies, material planning considerations and their 
interpretation of policy can help improve future decision making. 
 

4.  Planning Appeals – overview of Performance 
  
4.1 A small percentage of the total number applications determined by the council each 

year go to appeal. During the financial year between 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023, 
the council received 124 appeal decisions from the Planning Inspectorate. Of these, 
86 were dismissed or part dismissed, 38 appeals were allowed. 

 
4.2 The headline figures therefore show that most council decisions which went to appeal 

were upheld in full or in part (69%). This is similar to previous financial years, as set out 
in Table 1 below. This exceeds the performance target set by the council for the 
percentage of appeal decisions we expect to win, which is 60%. 

 
Table 1 – Appeal performance for 2022/23 and comparison data from previous years. 
Year Total No. 

of Appeals 
No. of 
Appeals 
Allowed 

No. of Appeals 
Dismissed or 
part dismissed 

% of Appeals 
Dismissed or 
part dismissed 

WCC Target for 
Appeal Success 

2022/23 124 38 86 69% 60% 
2021/22 119 41 78 66% 60% 
2020/21 147 40 107 73% 60% 
2019/20 433 101 332 77% 60% 
2018/19 191 60 131 69% 60% 
  

 
1 Behaviour which has led directly to an unnecessary appeal to the Secretary of State might be considered unreasonable. For instance, the 
Local Planning Authority might be unable to produce evidence to support each of their reasons for refusing planning permission, or for 
imposing a condition on a grant of planning permission. 

Page 26



 

4.3 Of the appeal decisions received during 2021/22, the majority were decided through 
written representations. There were two decisions made following a public inquiry and 
ten appeal decisions made following informal hearings. The number of appeals 
determined via an informal hearing and public inquiry are therefore higher than in 
previous years and appeals determined in this way involve more significant workload 
for officers. 

 
5. Performance against DLUHC Appeals Indicators 
 
5.1 In addition to our own performance target on appeals, the Department for Levelling Up, 

Homes and Communities (DLUHC) collect data on appeals against planning decisions 
made by local planning authorities and use this as a metric by which to assess the 
quality of decision making. For this reason, the data has been included in Section 5 of 
the report title ‘Annual Update on Planning Applications Performance – 2022/23’, which 
is also on the agenda for this committee.  

 
5.2  For major applications, the DLUHC data identifies that in the 24-month period to the 

end of March 2022 (latest period published by the DLUHC) the council handled 62 
major applications. Of these 62 decisions five were the subject of subsequent appeals 
and of these, 3 were allowed. The allowed appeals were at Townsend House 
(20/02361/FULL–appeal allowed 13 May 2021), 52-73 Wilton Road (19/06682/FULL–
appeal allowed 29 December 2021) and Kilmuir House (20/01346/FULL – appeal 
allowed 3 February 2023). Whilst the decision to refuse permission for redevelopment 
of Townsend House was a delegated decision, the other two redevelopment schemes 
were refused at committee against officer recommendation to grant conditional 
permission. Consequently, the percentage of all major applications permitted via 
appeal has risen to 4.8% for the relevant 24-month period. However, this remains well 
below the DLUHC performance threshold of 10%. 

 
5.3 In the same 24-month period to the end of March 2023, the council determined 5,097 

non-major applications of which 115 subsequently went to appeal. Of those, 35 were 
allowed. For non-majors, as a percentage of the total number of applications handled 
in this period, this equates to 0.7% (an improvement of 0.2% on the previously reported 
24-month period to the end of September 2020). 

 
6. Appeal Decisions by Application Types 
 
6.1  In terms of types of appeals, a breakdown of appeals won and lost, and the types of 

applications involved is set out below in Table 2. This demonstrates that success rate 
is high across all application types. A full summary of all appeals allowed and the 
reasons that the Planning Inspectorate gave for allowing the appeals is in Appendix 1.  

  
Table 2 – Appeal Performance for 2022/23 by Application Type. 

Appeals Decisions Received  
 

Type of 
Application 

 
Total 

 
Allowed 

 
Dismissed 

Part Allowed/ 
Part 
Dismissed 

% Dismissed/ 
Part 
dismissed 

Full Planning 75 21 52 2  72% 
Approval of Details 3 3 0 0 0% 
Prior Approval  0 0 0 0 N/A 
Listed Building 
Consents 

20 7 13  65% 

Telecoms 2 0 2 0 100% 
Advertisements 18 6 12 0 67% 
Enforcement 4 1 3 0 75% 

Page 27



 

Certificate of 
Lawfulness 

1 0 1 0 100% 

Tables and Chairs 1 0 1 0  100% 
WCC Total 124 38 84 2  

 
Appeals following a Committee Decision  

  
6.2  Almost all the above appeals relate to delegated decisions taken by officers. During 

2022/23, there were two appeal decisions allowed which related to applications where 
the decision to refuse permission was taken by Planning Applications Sub-Committee. 
In these cases, the officer recommendation to grant conditional permission was 
overturned by committee, but the subsequent appeals were allowed by the Planning 
Inspectorate on behalf of the Secretary of State. There was also one allowed appeal 
that removed a condition that was imposed by Sub-Committee. The allowed appeal 
decisions are summarised below:  

 
Table 3 – Allowed Appeals resulting from Committee Overturned Decisions 
Reference No/ Site 
Address 

Proposal and Appeal Outcome 

 
1. Kilmuir 

House, Ebury 
Street, 
London, 
SW1W 8TH 

 
(20/01346/FULL) 
 
Link to appeal 
documents 

Proposal: The appeal related to a proposal to demolish the existing buildings 
and erect a new building comprising basement, lower ground, ground and six 
upper floors, with plant at roof level. The new building would be used as 
residential units (Class C3) with flexible retail floorspace (Class A1/A2/A3/A4) 
at ground level. 
 
Sub-Committee Resolution: The Sub-Committee 14 June 2022 resolved to 
refuse permission on the grounds of lack of on-site affordable housing, 
contrary to Policy 9 of the City Plan 2019 - 2040 (April 2021) and Policy H4 
and H5 in the London Plan (March 2021) 
 
Outcome: A public inquiry was held in November 2022. During the course of 
cross examination, the Council was forced to withdraw its ground for refusal 
as the viability evidence in this case did not support the position that 
insufficient on-site affordable housing would be provided, having regard to 
the viability of the scheme, which both parties had accepted had an £8m 
deficit. Notwithstanding this, the applicant offered 4 on-site affordable housing 
units and the Inspector noted that this is 4 more than currently exist on the 
site, and 4 more than policy can require, given the scheme shows a viability 
deficit. The Inspector identified the affordable housing units as a clear benefit 
of the scheme that carries significant weight, especially given the pressing 
need for affordable housing across London.  
 
He concluded the scheme would be of high quality, employing a varied and 
attractive palette of materials, and would preserve the character of the 
adjacent conservation area, as well as the setting of nearby listed buildings. 
He agreed with the findings of the committee report that the scheme would 
incorporate appropriate sustainable measures, would not unacceptably 
impact on the living conditions of neighbours and would more generally be 
compliant with other policies in the development plan. On this basis the 
appeal was allowed, subject to conditions and completion of a S106 
agreement, including early and late-stage reviews of the affordable housing 
provision within the scheme.  
 
Whilst the withdrawal of the Council’s reason for refusal represented 
unreasonable behaviour, the appellant in this case declined to seek an award 
of costs, with the reason for this decision recorded in the appeal decision, 
being to maintain a positive working relationship with the Council. 

2. 13 – 17 
Montpelier 
Street, 

Proposal: This appeal related to a proposal for Planning Permission and 
listed building consent for external and internal alterations at ground and 
lower ground floor level in connection with the existing restaurant use (Use 

Page 28

https://idoxpa.westminster.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage
https://idoxpa.westminster.gov.uk/online-applications/simpleSearchResults.do?action=firstPage


 

London, SW7 
1HQ 

 
(20/07400/FULL) 
 
Link to appeal 
documents 

Class E) and for the creation of two new residential units (Use Class C3) at 
first and second floor.  
 
Sub-committee resolution: The application was presented to the planning 
applications sub-committee on 22 June 2021 where Members considered 
that the conditions recommended by officers to control the restaurant use did 
not overcome concerns in relation to residential amenity. The sub-committee 
resolved that the applications should be refused on the grounds that the 
restaurant use would be intensified to the detriment of residential amenity, 
contrary to Policies 7 and 16 of the City Plan (April 2021) and KBR14 and 15 
of the Knightsbridge Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
Reason to allow: The Inspector did not agree and considered there would be 
no intensification of the restaurant use as it is an existing restaurant. As such, 
the effects on neighbour’s amenity would be acceptable and comply with 
Policy 7 of the CP. The appeal was allowed, and the inspector refused to 
apply conditions previously recommended to control the restaurant operation 
given the existing restaurant was unrestricted. Costs were awarded to the 
applicant (see below). 

3. 32 Gerrard 
Street, 
London, W1D 
6JA 

 
(21/04145/FULL) 
 
Link to appeal 
documents 

Proposal: Use of basement and ground floors as Adult Gaming Centre (Sui 
Generis). 
 
Sub-committee resolution. Permission was granted by the Sub-Committee on 
25 January 2022 for change of use of the ground and basement floors from a 
betting shop to an adult gaming centre. The application originally sought 24-
hour use. Officers recommended that the hours be limited to 08.00-03.00. In 
granting permission, the Sub-Committee resolved to amend the opening 
hours to 08.00-00.00 and to limit the capacity of the premises to 50.  
 
Appeal and Outcome. Following the Sub-Committee’s decision an appeal 
against the hours of opening condition was made, which sought to amend the 
hours to between 08.00-03.00. The appeal was determined via written 
representations on 21 October 2022. The inspector considered that there is 
clearly an active evening and night-time economy in the area comprising, 
bars, restaurants, hot food takeaways and other entertainment venues and 
activities which last late into the night. The Inspector noted that the proposal 
would not have any unduly adverse impacts on the living conditions of nearby 
residents in respect of noise and disturbance because of the extended 
operating hours. Consequently, it was concluded that there were no conflicts 
with City Plan Policies 7, 16 and 3 and the appeal was allowed, and the 
original planning permission was varied to allow the use to open between 
08.00 and 03.00 daily. 

 
Awards of Costs  

  
6.3 As set out in paragraph 3.5, costs can be awarded against the council if it has behaved 

unreasonably in a way that has resulted in the appellant incurring costs that could 
otherwise have been avoided. 

 
6.4 In the last financial year there were costs awards against the council relating to two 

cases, as shown below. For context, Table 4 also sets out the costs awarded by the 
Planning Inspectorate, both for and against the council, since 2019. 

 
Table 4 – Appeal Costs Awards between 2019 and 2023 
 

Year Costs Awarded Against the Council Costs Awarded in Favour of the Council 
2019 N/A £42,500 (Maiden Lane) 
2020 £51,364 (157 Edgware Road, 103 

Eastbourne Mews and 1 Berkeley 
Street) 

N/A 

Page 29

https://idoxpa.westminster.gov.uk/online-applications/appealDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R5C75ARP2UE00
https://idoxpa.westminster.gov.uk/online-applications/appealDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=R5C75ARP2UE00
https://idoxpa.westminster.gov.uk/online-applications/appealDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RAQRA6RP2UE00
https://idoxpa.westminster.gov.uk/online-applications/appealDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RAQRA6RP2UE00


 

2021 £6,680 (74 Portland Place and 2 
Barton Street) 

£89,000 (Dolphin Square and 26 Leinster 
Square) 

2022 £80,000 (191 Old Marylebone Road) 
£8,400 (9-10 Southwick Place) 

N/A 

2023 £95,000 (13-17 Montpelier Street)                  N/A 

 
Appeal Trends, Policy Implications and Notable Appeals 

 
6.5 There have been no significant trends that have emerged in appeal decisions during 

2022/23 that relate to the application of policies within the City Plan 2019-2040 that 
was adopted in April 2021. Numbers of appeals and performance remains broadly 
similar to previous years, with good performance across all application types. Whilst 
there are no definitive trends, the issues identified in the following paragraphs have 
been identified and will be kept under review by officers in future years. 

 
6.6 While overall performance remains good in relation to advertisement appeals, there 

appears to be some inconsistency in different Inspectors’ approaches on adverts for 
example in relation to shroud adverts and illumination and a lack of clear guidance on 
this issue may be a contributing factor. For both advertisements and small-scale works 
of alterations, some design guidance could be produced to provide a greater 
consistency of approach to assist the interpretation of design policies and guide 
Inspectors to make more consistent decisions on detailed design issues. Production of 
any Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) is, however, subject to a programme 
within the Local Development Scheme2 and other policy work is currently the priority.  
A Public Realm SPD is part of the work programme and is currently being drafted and, 
where appropriate, guidance on advertisements will be included within this. While there 
is no intention at this stage to produce other specific SPD on this topic, the possibility 
of more focused and detailed design guidance will also be explored with the policy 
team. 

 
6.7 There has been a fall in the number of enforcement appeals. A fall in enforcement 

appeals was also noted last year but overall numbers fluctuate dependent upon the 
types of planning breaches that have occurred and been served with an enforcement 
notice. Therefore, this change is not considered to be representative of wider trends in 
planning enforcement activity. 

 
7.  Financial Implications  
  
7.1  None. A contingency fund is already allocated within the Town Planning and Building 

Control budget to allow for costs awards at appeal and there is no requirement arising 
from this report for this to be increased. 

  
8.  Legal Implications  
  
8.1  None. 
  
9.  Conclusion  
  
9.1     As set out above, the success rate in defending decisions at appeal remains high 

across all appeal types and there is a good service in terms quality of planning 
outcomes delivered to applicants, communities, and other stakeholders.  

 

 
2 Emerging policies and consultations | Westminster City Council 

Page 30

https://www.westminster.gov.uk/planning-building-control-and-environmental-regulations/planning-policy/emerging-policies-and-consultations


 

If you have any questions about this report, or wish to inspect one of the background 
papers, please contact: Jane Hamilton (jhamilton@westminster.gov.uk) or Oliver 
Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk)  
 

 

Appendices: 

1. Allowed Appeal Decisions Summaries for 2022/23. 

Background Papers: 

None.  

Page 31

mailto:jhamilton@westminster.gov.uk


 

Appendix 1 – Allowed Appeal Decisions Summaries for 2022/23 
 
A summary of appeals allowed in 2022/23 is set out below: 

April 2022 
Site: 57-59 Beak Street, London, W1F 9SJ 
Description: Variation of Condition 1 and removal of Condition 13 of planning permission dated 21 
December 2018 (RN: 18/08655/FULL) for: 'Use of basement and part ground as dual alternative 
shop (Class A1) or restaurant (Class A3) and installation of roof level kitchen extract. 
Reason to Allow: The proposal sought to vary the original application, extend the depth, rear 
projection of the property, and alter the form and profile of the existing elevation at these levels, 
which would increase the overall massing and bulk of Nos 57-59. Main issues are the effect of the 
proposed variation on i) the appearance of Nos 57-59 Beak Street; and ii) the character and 
appearance of the Soho Conservation Area. The Inspector considered the rear elevation of the 
host building is of minimal architectural quality and interest, having already been compromised by 
previous changes and the proposed amendments acceptable, noting he revised proposal would not 
be discordant on the rear elevation of the host building, would not harm the appearance of Nos 57-
59 and cause no harm to the Soho Conservation Area. 
Site: 19 Graham Terrace, London, SW1W 8JE 
Description: Variation of condition 1 of planning permission dated 23 April 2019 (RN: 
19/01643/FULL) (as amended by non-material amendment dated 10 December 2020, RN: 
20/07314/NMA) for the: Demolition of existing building, excluding front elevation and party walls, 
and construction of replacement building with mansard roof and rear extensions and altered front 
lightwell. NAMELY, to allow change of rear glazed facing wall to brick including altered form at 
ground floor level and alteration to black metal railing profile. 
Reason to Allow: The proposal subject to appeal sought to retain the development as constructed, 
the design of which is different from that approved. The Inspector considered the changes to 
design to be sensitive to the modern design approach of the ground and basement levels at the 
rear of the house and the traditional form and character is still evident in the higher levels of the 
building and noted that while the design of the black metal railings enclosing the ground floor roof 
terrace is different to that previously approved by the Council, it is an acceptable alteration to the 
house. The Inspector noted that the appeal property is enclosed to the south and west by tall 
boundary walls and views toward the proposal are either over the wall from higher levels of a 
neighbouring school building, which is some distance away, or obliquely from houses to the 
northeast in the terrace. The proposal is not therefore so prominent that it is harmful to the 
character and appearance of the CA. The Inspector concluded that the proposal does not have a 
harmful effect on the appearance of the host building and preserves the character and appearance 
of the Belgravia Conservation Area. This satisfies the requirements of Section 72(1) of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the design and heritage aims of Policies 
38, 39, and 40 of the LP 
Site: 18 - 20 Queensway, London, W2 3RX   
Description: Display of a wooden frame A board measuring 1.00m x 0.60m at the outside seating 
area. 
Reason to Allow: The Inspector considered the proposed advertisement would add little in terms 
of visual clutter, particularly if sited within a seating area and would be consistent with the signage 
associated with other commercial premises in the area. They also noted the proposed siting of the 
advertisement would leave several metres of unobstructed pavement for people to pass by safely 
and in the location shown on the submitted plan it would leave sufficient space around it for people 
to pass. Therefore, the Inspector considered the addition of the A frame board would not be 
harmful to the character and appearance of the conservation area or to the visual amenity of the 
area; it would not cause an obstruction of the highway would not affect pedestrian safety and would 
not harm public safety. 
May 2022 
Site: Bridgefield House, 219 Queensway, London, W2 5HR     
Description: Installation of six antenna apertures across three steel support structures (approx. 
29.75m AGL to top), four 600mm diameter dishes across four support structures and eight cabinets 
all at rooftop level, one Meter Cabinet at ground level plus ancillary works including works to the 
front elevation. 
Reason to Allow: The Inspector noted that the proposal would have an unacceptable effect on the 
character and appearance of the host building and surrounding area, while failing to preserve or 
enhance the character or appearance of nearby heritage designations. This harm was considered 

Page 32



 

to be less than substantial in this instance but nevertheless of considerable importance and weight. 
Under such circumstances, paragraph 202 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021) (the 
Framework) advises that this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal. 
Policy 19 of the City Plan supports investment in digital and telecommunications infrastructure and 
those public benefits will be weighed against impacts on local character, heritage, or the quality of 
the public realm. The Inspector noted that the scheme’s benefit of providing replacement and 
improved digital communications networks attracts significant weight. The Inspector therefore 
concluded that the moderate level of less than substantial harm to designated heritage assets 
would be outweighed by the significant public benefits that would be achieved by the proposal. 
Site: 18 Ennismore Gardens, London, SW7 1AA      
Description: Installation of two new windows on the side wall at first and second floor levels and 
removal of redundant pipework to the rear side wall in connection with the amalgamation of a one 
bedroom first floor flat and two bedroom second floor flat to provide a three bedroom maisonette 
and associated internal alterations including changes to door openings, partitions, cornicing, new 
interior staircase and panelling between first and second floors, and new bathroom at second floor 
(First and Second Floor Flat). 
Reason to Allow 
The Inspector considered that the proposed works would result in an overall enhancement of the 
significance of the listed building, albeit this is in the context of accepting that there would be less 
than substantial harm caused by the insertion of the new stair and the fabric loss. The Inspector 
considered that harm would be outweighed by public benefits identified and overall, the works 
would satisfy section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990; the 
Framework; and accord with policy 39 of the CP insofar as it requires works to listed buildings to 
preserve the asset’s special interest, relate sensitively to the period and architectural detail of the 
building and protect or, where appropriate, restore original or significant details and historic fabric. 
June 2022 
Site: 20 John Prince's Street, London, W1G 0BJ    
Description: Display of an externally illuminated integrated LED screen, flush within the Portland 
Stone, with matching Portland Stone trim, measuring 2.8m X 5.8m and 2.8m X 4.5m at first floor 
level on the corner of Oxford Street and Holles Street. 
Reason to Allow 
The Inspector did not consider that the screens would be unduly large or incongruous and noted 
that they would sit flush to the corner splay of the parapet adding a new, distinct, and contemporary 
element to the Oxford Street scene. When seen against the backdrop of the large monolithic office 
block to the rear as well as the highly commercialised nature of Oxford Street, the screens would 
not appear inappropriate in their context. While there might be some effect on the setting of nearby 
listed buildings and conservation areas, the setting of these assets is already defined by the 
commercial nature of Oxford Street. The Inspector concluded that the erection of these screens 
would not materially harm one’s enjoyment of the assets or the way in which they are currently 
experienced. And was satisfied the effect of the development would be neutral.  
Site: Ground Floor Flat, 71 Randolph Avenue, London, W9 1DW 
Description: Replacement of existing chimney cowl (Retrospective application) 
Reason to Allow 
The Inspector noted that the cowl is integrated into a low wall on the flat roof at first floor level. 
Given its location to the rear of the building, there is no impact on the street scene and the works 
are only really visible from neighbouring flats and considered that the replacement cowl preserves 
the host building’s features of special architectural or historic interest and does not undermine the 
public’s enjoyment or the significance of the heritage asset. Accordingly, the Inspector considered 
there to be no conflict with Policies 38, 39 and 40 of the City Plan nor Section 66 or 72 of the 1990 
Act. 
Site: Flat 3, 39 Hereford Road, London, W2 4AB 
Description: Erection of a roof extension to increase size of top floor flat together with associated 
terrace. 
Reason to Allow 
The Inspector considered that the proposal would preserve the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and would not, subject to a planning condition to add screening, harm the living 
conditions of occupants of the upper floor flat at Baynards House and Nos 113 and 115, with 
regards to noise and disturbance, privacy, and outlook. As such, the proposal would accord with 
City Plan Policies  
Site: 28A Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LE 

Page 33



 

Description: Display of two internally illuminated neon frontage signs measuring 0.51m x 1.71m 
and 0.14m x 0.70m and internally illuminated projecting sign measuring 0.60m x 0.60m. 
Reason to Allow 
The Inspector noted that the new adverts would be illuminated, which, in the context of the 
illuminated adverts in the Square that operate during the day and night, they considered would not 
be harmful. The location of the adverts would respond to the general position of adverts on 
commercial premises in the Square and the conservation area. As such, overall, the Inspector 
considered the adverts contribute to the vibrant nature of the appeal building and the conservation 
area. 
Site: 28A Leicester Square, London, WC2H 7LE  
Description: Installation of a new shopfront including new awning and menu board. 
Reason to Allow 
The Inspector considered the new shop front is modest in size and in the same location as the 
former shop front and follows the established layout and general design. The use of blue coloured 
metro tiles with white grouting does stand out next to the shop fronts either side of the appeal 
premises but the previous shop front was also of a stark colour, in contrast with the public house 
façade and the upper floors. Against this context, and that of other shop fronts in the Square and 
the area, the Inspector concluded that the character and appearance of the appeal building, and 
that of the conservation area would be preserved by the schemes. 
Site: Eaton House School, 3-5 Eaton Gate, London, SW1W 9BA    
Description: Replacement of rear lower ground floor and erection of single storey rear extension at 
3 Eaton Gate (first floor to mews) and use of roof as external learning areas, erection of single 
storey rear extension at 5 Eaton Gate (first floor to mews) and use o 
Reason to Allow: The Inspector considered that the public benefits arising in terms of the 
improved educational facilities and access for all within the school would outweigh the less than 
substantial harm arising from the proposal. 
July 2022 
Site: 20 Berkeley Street, London, W1J 8EE    
Description: Variation of conditions 12 and 13 of planning permission dated 22 December 2020 
(RN: 20/05970/FULL) for the: Variation of Condition 5 and 8 of planning permission dated 16 
January 20 (RN 19/08031/FULL), for use of the basement, lower ground floor and ground floor as a 
restaurant (Class A3). Erection of full height extract duct, alterations to the front fenestration in Hay 
Hill to create a new shopfront, and alterations to the rear lower ground floor fenestration and 
lowering of the lower ground floor by 500mm. NAMELY; to extend opening hours of the restaurant, 
and the hours of use of the plant, to between 07.00 to 02.30 Monday to Saturdays and 08.00 to 
02.00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays. 
Reason to Allow 
The application seeks to vary conditions attached to previous permissions and extend restaurant 
opening hours. The main issue relates to the effect of the proposed extended customer hours on 
the living conditions of nearby residents, with regards to noise and disturbance. The restaurant has 
been vacant for eight years and feedback from interested parties has pointed to the existing 
permitted opening / operational hours as being too restrictive. The Inspector considered that the 
proposed extension of customer hours would, on balance, having regard to the site’s location and 
subject to planning conditions, minimise noise impacts and prevent noise intrusion to residential 
developments so that there would be no material additional adverse effects and would accord with 
Policies 7, 16, 33 and 36 of the City Plan 2019 – 2040 and Policy MRU1 of the Mayfair 
Neighbourhood Plan.. 
August 2022 
Site: Apartment 24, Harcourt House, 19 Cavendish Square, London, W1G 0PL 
Description: Installation of external awning at seventh floor level. 
Reason to Allow 
The main issues are whether or not the proposal would preserve the special interest of the listed 
building and linked to that, whether or not the proposal would preserve or enhance the character or 
appearance of the Harley Street Conservation Area. The awning would be located on a new part of 
the building and would not therefore affect any historic fabric. the top of the awning would be 
glimpsed from within the public realm around Cavendish Square but sited on the 7th floor and set 
back from the front façade of the building, it would not be readily visible or prominent feature in the 
street-scene and represents a very modest change to the building as a whole. The Inspector 
considered proposals would preserve the special interest of he listed building and would comply 
with Policies 38, 39 and 40 of the City Plan (2021) which in various ways seeks to ensure that new 
development is in keeping with its context and preserves heritage assets. 

Page 34



 

Site: Flat 4, 121 Sutherland Avenue, London, W9 2QJ   
Description: Creation of a first-floor rear balcony with balustrade and enlargement of existing 
window opening to allow access via French doors 
Reason to Allow 
The application sought to enclose an existing bay window roof with a metal balustrade to form a 
balcony area at rear first floor level as well as alter the existing large sash window above the bay to 
create a doorway to the balcony. The inspector noted the modest alteration to the window, which 
would be replaced by French doors, utilises the same width of opening, but is extended to meet the 
roof of the bay, incorporates sensitively designed glazing and retains a vertical emphasis. The 
slope to the roof of the bay window roof is minimal and its replacement with a flat roof would not be 
significantly discernible. Moreover, he considered the scale of the balcony is modest and along with 
the proposed materials and detailing of the balustrade, reflects those found elsewhere in the 
conservation area, both on front and rear elevations. Consequently, the inspector concluded that 
the proposal would not be at odds with the vernacular form of the host building or harm the 
significance of the CA. Therefore, it would preserve the character and appearance of the CA. As 
such, the proposal would comply with Policies 38,39 or 40 of the City of Westminster City Plan 
2019- 2040 (2021). 
September 2022 
Site: 68 Queensway 
Description: Display of advertisements on railings (enforcement appeal) 
Reason to Allow 
The site is in the Queensway Conservation Area which the inspector noted is a very busy and 
vibrant commercial area with a great deal of activity at street level which is reflected in the variety of 
mainly commercial ground floor frontages which have different types of advertisements, including 
illuminated and non-illuminated fascia signs and projecting signs. The Inspector noted that because 
of their relatively small size, their simple non-illuminated design and the existing visual clutter and 
bustling ground floor activity along the street the advertisements in question are lost in their 
immediate visual context and are not visually prominent or intrusive. As such the Inspector 
considered that the special interest of the conservation area is not diminished by the 
advertisements and concluded that the continued use of the appeal site for the display of 
advertisements would not causes substantial injury to amenity and quashed the notice. 
Site: 49 Cambridge Street, London, SW1V 4PR     
Description: Amalgamation of the existing lower ground floor flat with the upper floors to form a 
single dwelling house 
Reason to Allow 
The Inspector noted that the proposal would conflict with CP Policy 8 as it would result in the loss 
of a residential unit and would not meet the stated exceptions. It would result in a dwelling of 
218sqm and would therefore exceed the limited stated in the Policy. He also noted that the 
proposal would enhance the special interest of the listed building. However, the continued viable 
use of the appeal property as a residential dwelling is not dependent on the proposal as the 
building has an ongoing residential use that would not cease in its absence. As such the proposal 
is not necessary to protect a heritage asset and would not accord with CP Policy 8B the proposal 
would create a dwelling that would be only slightly greater in floor area than the limit set in the 
Policy and would certainly not create a ‘super-sized’ property. The Inspector considered that 
although the existing dwelling on the upper floors is capable of being a three-bedroom property in 
terms of size, the amalgamation of the two dwellings would result in a more attractive family home 
with three-bedroom two reception rooms and family bathroom. As such, the residential use would 
be reconfigured to better meet the needs of families and the harm that would result from the conflict 
with the CP Policy 8 would be limited. 
October 2022 
Site: 9-10 Southwick Place, London, W2 2TN          
Description: Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of appeal decision 
(APP/X5990/D/18/3192708 DATED 10 May 2018 (RN: 17/07044/FULL) for the: Formation of roof 
garden across existing roofs at second floor level of Nos.9-10 Southwick Place. Namely, to allow 
the rete 
Reason to Allow: The Inspector considered the proposal would not harm the character or the 
appearance of the host building or the Bayswater CA, and found that it would accord with Policies 
38, 39 and 40 of the city plan and allowed the appeal. 
Site: 32 Gerrard Street, London, W1D 6JA   
Description: Use of basement and ground floors as Adult Gaming Centre (Sui Generis). 

Page 35



 

Reason to Allow: This appeal was against a condition imposed by the Sub-Committee. The 
inspector considered that there is clearly an active evening and night-time economy in the area 
comprising, bars, restaurants, hot food takeaways and other entertainment venues and activities 
which last late into the night. He considered the proposal would not have any unduly adverse 
impacts on the living conditions of nearby residents in respect of noise and disturbance as a result 
of the extended operating hours of the premises, consequently, there are no conflicts with the City 
Plan Policies 7, 16 and 3 and the appeal was allowed and planning permission varied by deleting 
condition imposed by committee and substituting it with a condition allowing extended hours until 
3am. 
Site: 32 Gerrard Street, London, W1D 6JA   
Description: various illuminated fascia signs and a projecting sign 
Reason to Allow: The Inspector found that the proposed advertisements would preserve the 
significance of the conservation area and therefore would not harm the amenity of the area and 
complies with policy. 
Site: 10 Ogle Street  
Description: Installation of 3 air conditioning units surrounded by an acoustic enclosure at main 
roof level. 
Reason to Allow The main issues in this case are the impact of the proposed development on the 
character or appearance of the East Marylebone Conservation Area and on the setting of the 
Grade II listed Church of St Charles Borromeo and St Charles Presbytery. The Inspector noted that 
the enclosure would add extra development to the roof, would not result in visual clutter due to its 
modest size and placement next to the chimney stack and would represent a small and unobtrusive 
feature in the context of the both the host building and wider Conservation Area. As such the 
proposal would preserve the character and appearance of the East Marylebone Conservation Area, 
have an acceptable effect on the setting of the Grade II listed buildings and there would be no 
conflict with Policies 38, 39 and 40 of the City Plan. 
November 2022 
Site: 13 - 17 Montpelier Street, London, SW7 1HQ          
Description: Use of first and second floor level as two self-contained residential flats (Class C3), 
creation of terrace at rear first floor level, opening up blind windows to Montpelier Place and 
internal alterations in connection with new residential use.  
Reason to Allow: The main issue in this appeal was the impact of proposals on neighbour’s 
amenity having particular regard to late night noise and disturbance. The Inspector considered 
there would be no intensification of the restaurant use as it is an existing restaurant. As such, the 
effects on neighbour’s amenity would be acceptable and comply with Policy 7 of the CP. 
Site: 13 - 17 Montpelier Street, London, SW7 1HQ          21/06229/ADLBC 
Description: Approval of new windows and doors pursuant to condition No 7 of listed building 
consent Ref 20/07401/LBC granted on 20 July 2021 (appeal against non-determination) 
Reason to Allow The inspector considered that the details submitted in clearance of the conditions 
in question are acceptable. 
Site: 13 - 17 Montpelier Street, London, SW7 1HQ          21/06228/ADLBC 
Description: Approval of new shopfronts pursuant to condition No 9 of listed building consent Ref 
20/07401/LBC granted on 20 July 2021 appeal against non-determination) 
Reason to Allow The inspector considered that the details submitted in clearance of the conditions 
in question are acceptable. 
Site: 13 - 17 Montpelier Street, London, SW7 1HQ          21/06227/ADLBC 
Description: approval of windows and doors pursuant to condition No 7 of listed building consent 
Ref 21/01234/LBC granted on 20 July 2021 appeal against non-determination) 
Reason to Allow The inspector considered that the details submitted in clearance of the conditions 
in question are acceptable. 
Site: 31 Charlwood Street, London, SW1V 2DU        21/08438/FULL 
Description: Erection of a second and third floor rear extension to an existing hotel. 
Reason to Allow: The main issues in considering this appeal were the effect of the proposed 
development on the character and appearance of the Pimlico Conservation Area and on the living 
conditions and outlook of neighbouring residents. The Inspector noted that he proposed two storey 
extension would be located above an existing Outrigger and would significantly increase its height. 
However, he considered that it would remain as a subservient feature of the host property, and 
concluded that given its subservient appearance, matching materials, and its relative consistency 
with the varied scale of surrounding outriggers, it would have neutral impact on the CA, thus 
preserving its character. The Inspector also considered that the proposed development would not 
increase any overbearing impacts on adjoining occupier and the objections can be overcome 

Page 36



 

through suitably worded planning conditions to ensure that the proposed windows are obscure 
glazed It was noted that the appellant has provided technical evidence which demonstrates the 
proposal would not lead to a significant loss of light to neighbouring dwellings. As such the 
inspector concluded that the proposed development would not be harmful to the living conditions of 
the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings not to the conservation area and would comply with City 
Plan Policies. 
Site: 43 Vauxhall Bridge Road, London, SW1V 2TA  
Description:  
Reason to Allow This enforcement appeal related to plant equipment on the rear of a public 
house. There are several grounds of appeal against listed building enforcement notices including: 
Ground (b) - That the matters alleged to constitute a contravention of section 9(1) or (2) of the Act 
have not occurred Ground (c) - That those matters (if they occurred) do not constitute such a 
contravention. Ground (e) - That listed building consent ought to be granted for the works, or that 
any relevant condition of such consent which has been granted ought to be discharged, or different 
conditions substituted. There are other grounds too, but they were not pleaded in this case. In this 
case the Ground b appeal was dismissed. The Inspector concurred with WCC that the works 
subject of the notice had occurred as a matter of fact. The appeal failed. The Ground C appeal was 
also dismissed. The Inspector determined that the works enforced against had affected the 
character of the building as one of special or architectural interest. These works have not been 
authorised, and a contravention of section 9(1) of the Act has thus occurred. However, the Ground 
(e) appeal was allowed. Overall, the Inspector disagreed with Westminster City Council and 
considered that subject to a condition in respect of repainting in black the installation of the duct 
does not harm the special interest/significance of the listed building. Listed building consent was 
therefore granted. 
Site: Basement Flat, 71 Randolph Avenue, London, W9 1DW  21/04806/LBC 
Description: Replacement of existing chimney cowl (Retrospective application).  
Reason to Allow: The Inspector concluded the cowl does not harm the special interest of the listed 
building and allowed the appeal. 
December 2022 
Site: College, 1 - 4 Suffolk Street, London, SW1Y 4HG   21/08017/LBC 
Description: Installation of secondary glazing to three windows at first floor level on front elevation 
Reason to Allow The main Issue in this case was the impact of the proposed works on the special 
interest of the listed building The inspector noted that the design would be compatible with existing 
window panelling and mouldings. The proposed works would be reversible and would not cause 
irrevocable harm to the heritage asset as would be the case from loss of historic windows and the 
installation of inappropriate window replacements. 
Site: 36 Northumberland Place, London, W2 5AS   
Description: Demolition of existing rear conservatory and construction of new rear extension with 
white brick and metal framed double glazed windows/doors. Lowering of existing garden and 
ground floor. 
Reason to Allow. The Inspector considered the proposal would not harm the character or 
appearance of the rear of the building, the nearby listed building’s settings and neither would it 
harm the character or appearance of the conservation area. It would also not harm living conditions 
of adjoining occupiers.  
Site: 48 Carnaby Street, London, W1F 9PX  
Description: Replacement shopfront. 
Reason to Allow The main issue is the effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of 
the area including the effect on the Soho Conservation Area (CA). The inspector noted that most 
shopfronts in the vicinity are modern and brightly coloured. In the company of these and other 
shopfronts, all jostling for attention, the oversized and slightly projecting bright yellow portal around 
the entrance doors would not appear jarring, unduly prominent or out of place, and that as such the 
proposal would not significantly harm the character and appearance of the area, and would 
preserve the character and appearance of the Soho CA and comply with policy. 
Site: 4 Lauderdale Parade, Lauderdale Road, London, W9 1LU 
Description: Replacement shopfront and advert applications 
Reason to Allow The main issues in relation to the shopfront were the impact on the character or 
appearance of the Maida Vale Conservation Area, and the effect of the proposed development on 
the living conditions of adjoining occupiers. The Inspector considered the shopfront therefore does 
not look out of place in its surroundings and does not detract from the character and appearance of 
the parade within which it is situated and that it is unlikely that noise associated with the operation 
of the premises as a restaurant when the bi-folds are open would be readily distinguishable from 

Page 37



 

the existing noise character of the premises during the restaurant opening times. The inspector 
therefore concluded that the development does not cause harm to the character and appearance of 
the appeal site or its surroundings, with regard to the character and appearance of the MVCA, nor 
would it adversely impact on the living conditions of neighbouring occupier. In addition, the signage 
was not considered incongruous, or unduly prominent and is of a size and design appropriate to the 
host building. Accordingly, it has not caused any significant harm to the visual amenity of the area. 
Consequently, neither application was considered to conflict with WCP policies. 
February 2023 
Site: Kilmuir House 
Description: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a new building of basement, lower 
ground, ground and six upper floors and plant at rooftop level to provide residential floorspace 
(Class C3), flexible retail floorspace (Class A1/A2/A3/A4), disabled car parking and associated 
landscaping works. 
Reason to Allow. The Inspector Noted that the scheme includes 4 affordable units. This is 4 more 
than currently exist on the site, and 4 more than policy can require, given the scheme shows a 
deficit. The provision of these affordable units is clearly a benefit of the scheme, and carries 
significant weight, especially given the pressing need for affordable housing across London. The 
scheme would be of high quality and employ a varied and attractive palette of materials. It would 
preserve the character of the adjacent Conservation Area, as well as the setting of nearby listed 
buildings. It would incorporate sustainable measures through construction, minimising energy use 
and carbon emissions, including the use of air source heat pumps and photovoltaic panels. There 
would be no unacceptable impacts on living conditions at neighbouring properties. the proposal 
would accord with the development plan. In these circumstances, the Framework is clear that 
development should be approved without delay. Accordingly, I conclude that the appeal should be 
allowed subject to conditions 
Site: 65 Bayswater Road, London, W2 3PH           
Description: Use of ground and basement levels as restaurant (Class E); amalgamation of 2 x 1 
bed units at first and second floors to form 1 x 2 bed unit (Class C3); Installation of openable 
shopfront to Bayswater Road; Formation of two doors to Elms Mews; and installation of kitchen 
extract duct to roof. 
Reason to Allow The main issues in considering this appeal was the effect of the proposed Class 
E unit frontage on the character and appearance of the host building and whether it would preserve 
or enhance the character or appearance of the CA, and the living conditions of nearby residents 
regarding noise and disturbance; and whether the proposed development would affect housing 
stock having regard to relevant local policies. The Inspector noted that the previously proposed 
openable shop front had now been removed from proposals. As such he considered the proposal 
would improve the character and appearance of the host building and enhance the character and 
appearance of the CA, as the openable frontage no longer forms part of the proposal the reuse of 
the unit would not cause more noise and disturbance to nearby residents then if the current 
frontage were retained. However, The Inspector noted that the proposal would constitute the loss of 
a singular dwelling and as such so fail to comply with CP Policy 8 (C). However, it was noted that 
the basement portion of the flat has been damaged by flooding and there is a likelihood of further 
flood damage from surface water, and the potential for harmful effects from stopping up the 
basement windows, to prevent or reduce future flooding, on the living conditions of potential future 
occupants in terms of light, ventilation, and outlook. In comparison the Class E unit, constitutes a 
singular room with no storage or staff welfare facilities. This along with its small size is a limiting 
factor when seeking to bring the unit back into use. The proposal would provide additional floor 
space for the Class E unit creating a more viable and flexible space for a mix of perspective future 
uses including that proposed, a restaurant and would positively impact on the character of the 
appeal building and the proposed new frontage would improve its appearance. The proposal would 
therefore, in turn, enhance the CA’s character and appearance and, in compliance with Paragraph 
199 of the Framework. Consequently, the benefits the proposed development would provide would 
outweigh the harm identified. Therefore, there are material considerations, specific to the appeal 
site’s situation and circumstances, and the Framework, which indicate a decision other than in 
accordance with the development plan is appropriate. 
March 2023 
Site: 85-89 Belgrave Road, London, SW1V 2BQ     
Description: Retention of grey paint to front rendered facades. 
Reason to Allow The main issues were the impact on the special interest of the listed buildings 
and character and appearance of the conservation area. Inspector accepted the grey paint is it 
different in tone to the beige/ivory and cream colours found in the terrace but considered the grey 

Page 38



 

used is very pale and is a neural colour which, in its setting, compliments the wider palette. The 
overall effect when viewing the terrace in the street scene along Belgrave Road is one of a 
complimentary colour. Because of its paleness and neutrality, in the middle-distance and longer 
views along the highway, the change in Colour it is barely noticeable. There is simply no 
disassociation of these 3 properties from the wider terrace, instead the composition and harmony of 
the Grade II listed terrace remains intact, as does the character and appearance of the PCA. 
Overall, the works would preserve the special architectural or historic interest of the Grade II listed 
building. 
Site: 334 - 348 Oxford Street, London, W1C 1JG  
Description: Scaffold shroud with 1:1 scale printed image of the proposed building and 2x areas of 
inset advertising measuring 12m x 5m each 
Reason to allow: The Inspector noted that the main consideration is how the proposed 
advertisements would relate to the building and the wider townscape. In relation to the scale of the 
building, the proposed advertisements would take up a small proportion of the scaffolding wrap and 
the building. In this context the size, height, and design of the advertisements, including the fact 
that they would be illuminated, would sit comfortably in the busy streetscene and cause no harm to 
the conservation areas or other heritage assets. Although there are a limited number of upper level 
of advertisements along this part of Oxford Street, they are by no means entirely absent. There are 
also some obviously retail uses at first floor level and the number of passing buses with 
advertisements at a high level all combine to generate interest and activity above street level. As 
such the inspector concluded the proposal would not dominate the heritage assets in the area and 
would cause no harm and complies with policy. 

 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 
Planning & City Development Committee 

Date: 26 July 2023 
  
Classification: General Release 
  
Title: Summary of Member Training during 2023 
  
Report of: Director of Town Planning and Building Control 
  
Financial Summary: None. 
  
Summary Author and Contact Details: Oliver Gibson (ogibson@westminster.gov.uk/ 
07971026919) 
 
 
Training Summary  
  
To date during 2023 the members of the Planning Applications Sub-Committees have 
undertaken the following training: 
 
Date Topic Session Lead(s) 
19 January 2023 GLA Referrable 

Applications 
Amanda Coulson, North Area Team 
Leader 
 

January & June 
2023 

Individual Introductory 
Training Sessions for New 
Members 

Amanda Coulson, North Area Team 
Leader 
 

 
The following member training is due to be provided by officers later in the year. Officers 
would welcome any suggestions Members may have for additional training topics. Officers 
will look to add any additional topics to the dates identified below or schedule them for early 
2024. 

Date Topic Session Lead(s) 
26 October 2023  Appeals Process and 

Advertisement Applications 
Amanda Coulson, North Area Team 
Leader / Sarah Whitnall, Area 
Planning Officer & North Team 
Appeals Co-Ordinator / Tom Burke, 
Head of Design, Conservation & 
Sustainability  
 

6 December 2023 Biodiversity Net Gain Amanda Coulson, North Area Team 
Leader / Sustainability Officers 
 

 

 
If you have any questions about this summary, please contact: Oliver Gibson 
(ogibson@westminster.gov.uk / 07971026919)  
 

 Page 41

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES AND MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES
	4 Annual Update on Planning Applications Performance - 2022/23
	5 Update on Appeals Performance and Trends 2022/23
	8 Summary of Member Training during 2023

